
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Sharon Hughes 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864281   Ebost: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 17 Mehefin 2021 

 
 

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,  
 
Bydd cyfarfod o’r  Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd 
Mercher, 23ain Mehefin, 2021 am 5.30 pm i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  Gall 
cynghorwyr a'r cyhoedd sy'n dymuno siarad am unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i'r 
Cadeirydd. Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 
diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny. 
 

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr unigolion 

sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar wefan y Cyngor yn 
www.caerffili.gov.uk 

 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
Tudalennau 

  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


 
I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau Craffu canlynol:- 
 
3  Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili - Cynigion ar gyfer Gwasgariad Lloches ac Adleoli Affganiaid. 

1 - 8 
 

4  Cronfa Ymrymuso'r Gymuned. 
9 - 32 

 
 
 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr M.A. Adams, Mrs E.M. Aldworth, C.J. Cuss, Mrs C. Forehead, Miss E. Forehead, 
L. Harding, G. Johnston, G. Kirby (Is Gadeirydd), C.P. Mann, B. Miles, J. Pritchard (Cadeirydd), 
R. Saralis, Mrs M.E. Sargent, G. Simmonds, J. Taylor a L.G. Whittle 
 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol 
 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


 
 
 

SPECIAL POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
  23RD JUNE 2021 

 
SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL - PROPOSALS 

FOR ASYLUM DISPERSAL AND AFGHAN RELOCATION 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND 

HOUSING 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 Of the twenty-two local authorities in Wales five are Asylum Dispersal Areas (ADA): 

Cardiff, Newport, Swansea, Wrexham and Conwy. A recent approach has been 
made by the Home Office, working with the Wales Strategic Migration Partnership, 
and through Welsh Government, for more local authorities to participate in the 
scheme to alleviate pressures in the asylum system and share the role across other 
local authorities in Wales. 

 
1.2 This report considers the implications of the local authority becoming an ADA and 

makes a number of recommendations to manage the implementation of the scheme, 
proposing a gradual start and a review after 12 months.  

 
1.3  In addition a more recent request has been made to consider the relocation of 

Afghan nationals employed by the UK government in Afghanistan, primarily due to 
the instability caused by the imminent withdrawal of US troops by September 2021 
and risks to life. The report considers the implications of participation in this scheme 
also. 

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 This report summarises the positive experience of settling refugee families that the 

authority has been involved in since 2015, through the UK Resettlement Scheme. 
While the status of asylum seekers is different to refugees, there is a degree of 
similarity in the case management processes, albeit that, for asylum seekers, this is 
the responsibility of the commissioned provider, Clearsprings Ready Homes (CRH). 
CRH are responsible for the provision of accommodation and support and signposting 
service users to third sector support.  

 
2.2 An ‘in principle’ agreement has been given for the local authority to step forward as an 

ADA, the report examines the implications further and makes recommendations for a 
‘start small and evaluate’ approach to participating in this Home Office scheme. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Information is given on how the scheme operates and the experience of the five local 
authorities in Wales who are already involved. A presentation is being provided to 
support this report and allow member questioning of the Home Office (UK Visas and 
Immigration) and Clearsprings Ready Homes on the support available to asylum 
seekers and the management of cases. 

 
2.3 The situation for Afghan nationals employed by the UK government is an immediate 

one, however the scheme is different again to the UK Resettlement Scheme and the 
Asylum Dispersal Scheme. The distinctions between each and the implications for the 
participation of the local authority are considered and drawn out in the 
recommendations. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Asylum Dispersal 
3.1 The views of Scrutiny Committee are sought prior to a report to Cabinet on the 7th July 

2021 on the local authority’s participation in the Home Office Asylum Dispersal 
Scheme. 

 
3.2 Two options are proposed: 

 
1. Participate fully in the scheme once the decision is taken  
2. Begin with a smaller number (5) family properties and evaluate the 

success after 12 months 
  
3.3 The view of officers, based on discussions with the Wales Strategic Migration 
 Partnership, the Home Office, Clearsprings Ready Homes, and the other Welsh local 
 authorities who already participate is that Option 2 is the preferred option. 
 
 Scrutiny are asked to provide their views. 
 
 Relocation of Afghan Nationals 
3.4 The Home Office request is to relocate Afghan staff immediately, with the case 
 management support being provided by the local authority on a funded basis for 4 
 months after arrival. Given that we are proposing to embark on asylum dispersal it 
 may be too difficult to commit to Afghan relocation at the same time. Primarily 
 because we will need to set up new systems and internal policies for asylum 
 dispersal and it would place additional pressure on our private sector housing 
 supply. However, it may be possible to look again at this request within a few 
 months. 
 
3.5 The officer recommendation is that Cabinet stay abreast of the situation for Afghan 
 national relocation over the summer months and extend the support if the  capacity of 
 services and available housing supply can absorb this scheme. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The local authority has had a positive experience of assisting with the settlement of 

refugee families from Syria and Cabinet decided in September last year to continue 
with the successor UK Resettlement Scheme, which will settle refugee families from 
other regions in the world. The scheme, although not without its day to day case 
management difficulties, has allowed learning on the issues faced by displaced people 
that can be used in assisting with asylum dispersal. 

Page 2



 
4.2 There are significant pressures in the asylum system with a larger number of people 

waiting for accommodation due to the pandemic. In addition, the required capacity has 
been carried by a small number of local authorities in Wales until now. Across the UK, 
the Home Office, accommodation providers and local government have committed to 
achieving the participation of more local authorities to alleviate the disparities in the 
system. For humanitarian and ethical reasons, the request to participate has been 
given an ‘in principle’ agreement at this time. 

 
4.3 In relation to Afghan relocation, there is an imminent threat to the individuals involved 

and should be looked at again, before the end of the summer, if services are able to 
commit to providing the support and housing supply will be able to support an 
additional scheme. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The authority has been involved in the resettlement of Syrian refugee families since 

late 2015 at the request of the Home Office and in response to the humanitarian 
crisis facing people displaced by the war in Syria. Since that time 7 families 
comprising 35 individuals have been settled in the county borough. The local 
authority receives direct funding, tapering over 5 years, from the Home Office to 
support integration in communities, with resettled families being granted Refugee 
Leave status giving them the right to work and claim benefits. Families have been 
resettled at a rate and volume which has been at the discretion of the local authority. 
The main hurdle to settling more families has been the lack of suitable 
accommodation in the private rented sector 

 
 In addition, Children’s Services Social Services Teams are involved in a regional 

response to providing accommodation for unaccompanied asylum-seeking children 
under the National Transfer Scheme from arrival local authorities, mainly in the South 
East of England. 

 
5.2 In February this year the Deputy Minister asked, at the behest of the Home Office, for 

a widening of asylum dispersal in Wales. Welsh Government declared ‘Nation of 
Sanctuary’ status for Wales to welcome people through safe and legal routes who 
need help on humanitarian grounds to rebuild their lives. Currently five of the twenty-
two local authorities are asylum dispersal areas, with Newport, Cardiff, Swansea and 
Wrexham having been working on asylum dispersal for many years. There are 
significant pressures in the asylum system and as of December last year 2996 
asylum seekers were accommodated in Wales with the majority, 1441, in Cardiff. 
Limited movement through the system due to the pandemic and the location of 
asylum seekers in unsuitable and unsafe accommodation at the old Penally Barracks 
in Pembrokeshire had prompted discussion with local authority Leaders and Chief 
Executives on widening the support among more local authorities for reasons of 
fairness and equity, and to alleviate pressure in the system. A few local authorities 
have entered into the discussion positively and Caerphilly Council gave an ‘in 
principle’ agreement to becoming an ADA working in partnership with the Home 
Office, as a coordinated and proactive approach was felt to be preferrable.  

 
5.3 Since that time officers have been meeting with the Wales Strategic Migration 

Partnership (WSMP) - the Home Office funded support coordination team based at 
the WLGA, the Home Office and their commissioned provider Clearsprings Ready 
Homes (CRH) to understand what the implications would be for the local authority 
and services in becoming an ADA. In addition, discussions have been held on an all-

Page 3



Wales basis and with the current areas directly to further understand the practicalities 
of the scheme. The recommendations in this report have been informed by those 
discussions. 

 
5.4 The Asylum Seeker Process and Support 
 In widening dispersal, the Home Office preferred option is to work in partnership with 

local authorities to agree the number and location of properties on a voluntary basis, 
although there is a legal ability for the Home office to mandate dispersal in an area 
under immigration legislation. Clearsprings Ready Homes (CRH) have a 10-year 
contract, from 2019, to source properties and provide the case management support 
for asylum seekers whilst they are awaiting a decision on their claim from the Home 
Office. Another contract, with Migrant Help, provides a 24-hour advice and 
assistance helpline and assists asylum seekers navigate the asylum process and 
helps them after decision whether positive or negative.  

 
5.5 While asylum seekers are in the system, if they are destitute, they are provided with 

accommodation and sufficient money (£37.75 per week) to maintain themselves, 
although some are self-funded and may have their own accommodation or receive 
support from family and friends.. 

 
5.6 The process is that CRH will find suitable properties in the local authority but will do 

so by working with Housing services to understand the need in an area before 
approval. Only landlords registered with Rent Smart Wales are accepted. From the 
perspective of the local authority we are able to work with Gwent Police to discuss 
the proposed property and can refuse to accept a proposal if there are reasonable 
grounds. Although the Immigration Act does give UK Visas and Immigration powers 
to override this, in practice they prefer to work with a local authority to find solutions. 
The local authority is able to influence whether the property is used for single 
individuals or families, it can also be inspected by our staff at any time. If a property 
is found but is unsuitable it will be notified to our Housing services so that they may 
consider it as an option for homelessness prevention. There may be a need to use 
contingency accommodation if pressures in the system become too great, however, 
the local authority will receive early notification if this is ever the case. 

 
5.7 There is a shortage of good quality private rented accommodation across the county 

borough. Currently the available social rented stock cannot accommodate all 
households in need of accommodation. Local authority homelessness duties can be 
discharged through private rented sector accommodation and there is competition 
from other agencies for properties. Negotiating the location of properties with 
Housing services, and the officer recommendation to start with five family properties 
only will allow a proper assessment after 12 months. 

 
5.8 All people seeking asylum go through security screening checks. CRH are in regular 

contact with people in asylum accommodation and manage housing and address any 
issues at the property with support as appropriate from Migrant Help. People seeking 
asylum readily respect UK laws (note- not to do so will affect their application) and 
receive induction briefings on rights and responsibilities and UK laws at the initial 
accommodation in Cardiff. Most people will spend some time in initial 
accommodation, before being dispersed to the participating local authorities in 
Wales. 

 
5.9  School age children have a right to education. Although a large proportion of people 

are over 18 and well educated and wish to study in the UK. Generally, asylum 
seekers are not allowed to work but can do so if they have been here for 12 months 
or more and possess skills on a shortage occupations list. They are allowed to 

Page 4



volunteer and many do with support from third sector partners. 
 
5.10 After assessment, for anyone granted asylum status/refugee protection, they then 

have the right to work and claim benefits, they are also able to ask for housing 
support from the local authority if they meet the requirements. For any refusals there 
is an appeals process and they will be supported by the Home Office and remain in 
accommodation until that concludes. For families with children that support continues 
until the youngest child is 18 and therefore they could remain in accommodation for 
some time. The UK government is, however, developing a New Plan for Immigration 
and there may be changes to the way in which support is given.  

 
5.11 In relation to the numbers of people who may be housed in a local authority the 

maximum proportion is 1:200 residents. This equates to 889 for the county borough 
but UK Visas and Immigration have stated that there is no intention to procure 
anywhere near that number of properties. Initially two flats, suitable for family 
occupation, have been identified but not yet progressed. 

 
5.12 The location of properties will be negotiated with Housing staff as explained in 5.6 

and there will be an option to notify local ward members. There may not be an option 
to make a refusal unless the grounds are reasonable i.e. based on the advice of 
Housing staff or Gwent Police. Notifying ward members will prepare them to answer 
any questions and provide any support required. Drawing a parallel with the current 
Syrian resettlement programme, ward members are not notified of addresses just 
arrivals in their constituency. The reason being to allow people to settle in the area as 
any other family or individual would and not to single them out or draw attention to 
their arrival in the country or the county borough. However, recognising that the 
asylum dispersal system is a different situation the address of selected properties will 
be made known to ward members. A member’s seminar has been arranged for the 
28th of June to support the proposed decision to move ahead with becoming an ADA. 

 
5.13 The experience of other Welsh local authorities 
 In preparing the recommendations above information has been gathered from the 

other participating areas on how working on asylum dispersal operates in practice. In 
summary the responses were positive and reflect that good working relationships 
exist with the managed provider, Clearsprings Ready Homes. Some pressures on 
housing supply were noted but largely these can be absorbed. Many people leave 
the area once they are granted status, this was noted in the more rural authorities.  

 
5.14 People in the asylum system are a mixture or families (approx.40%) and single 

individuals (approx.60%). The approach taken by Conwy, a relatively new ADA, is to 
begin with family properties. In discussion with CRH this would seem like a sensible 
option for Caerphilly also. 

 

5.15 Conclusion   

Participation in the Syrian Resettlement Programme/Vulnerable Persons 
Resettlement Scheme and its successor the UK Resettlement Scheme has been 
largely positive for the local authority and has supported 35 displaced people to make 
their homes in the county borough. Two parents have begun nursing degrees, 
another family have started a local launderette business, with the help of the provider 
commissioned by the local authority, Displaced People in Action. 

Asylum Dispersal is also supported by managed contracts, with Clearsprings Ready 
Homes and Migrant Help, and while there will be additional pressure on housing 
supply the recommendation to start small and evaluate after 12 months will provide 

Page 5



assurance that asylum seeking families can be absorbed within the capacity of 
services. Should the Asylum Dispersal Scheme go well consideration can be given to 
working in partnership with the Home Office to bring more properties in the private 
rented sector online and the extension of the scheme to asylum seeking individuals.  

The situation for Afghan employees of the UK government is acute and we 
understand the expectation is that 3000 individuals are due to arrive in the UK before 
the end of June. While the decision on asylum dispersal is working its way through 
reports any decision on Afghan Relocation should be held off for a very short period 
but looked at again before the end of the summer.  
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 The participation in the UK Resettlement Scheme and the Asylum Dispersal Scheme 
assumes that suitable properties will be available in the private rented sector. One of 
the main barriers to date to settling more refugee families, aside from the pandemic, 
has been the lack of suitable affordable properties, well located next to schools. 
Officers seek properties regularly and we understand that the Home Office provider 
for asylum dispersal, Clearsprings Ready Home will do the same. Five family homes 
are recommended for the first 12-month period. It may not be possible to achieve that 
number. 

 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 The authority has a successful track record of settling refugee families under 

schemes that have been in existence since 2015. On humanitarian grounds the 
authority should provide support to asylum seekers by working in partnership with 
Home Office and its contracted provider. Participation the scheme has been by a few 
authorities in Wales and local government has been encouraged to come forward 
and assist for many years. Asylum seekers are one of the most vulnerable groups in 
society, who are likely to have suffered significant disadvantage in their home 
countries. The validity of claims is assessed by the Home Office and the system 
seeks to support people while their claim is being assessed.  

   
 Hyperlink to full IIA  
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Unlike the UK Resettlement Scheme, which supports refugee families and is fully 

funded by the Home Office, there is no additional financial support for local 
authorities that are ADAs. Welsh Government continue to lobby on this issue on 
behalf of the ADAs in Wales. All accommodation and weekly cash support are 
provided by the Home Office and no funding passes through local authority hands. 

 
8.2 There will inevitably be additional pressures on services in managing any case 

related work that will fall to the local authority, this is not easily quantified and the 
make-up of families and particular issues faced by asylum seekers will not be known 
prior to arrival in the county borough. To mitigate the effect on local authority services 
referral to CRH and Migrant Help would be the first port of call. Asylum seeking 
families who arrive with children are entitled to education and this will need to be 
managed within school capacity. English language acquisition has proved to be a 
hurdle for refugee parents. Children are supported in schools through the Gwent 
Ethnic Minority Service (GEMS). For refugee families additional language teaching 

Page 6

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/IIA_Asylum_Dispersal_June2021


and GEMS support has been commissioned. For asylum seeking families there is no 
funding that will allow this and so these needs will have to be met within existing 
budgets, where possible. 

 
8.3 Corporate Management Team, have given a commitment to fund a 12-month Policy 

Officer post, through reserves, working 3-days a week to set up the systems, polices, 
process and procedures to allow the local authority to become an asylum dispersal 
area. The total cost of the post is £27,296 per year. 

 
8.4 The officer recommendation is to start with 5 family properties in the first year and 

reassess the scheme before working in partnership to bring more properties on-line. 
This should allow a managed consideration of the full implications on internal 
services i.e. Housing, Social Services and Education. It may be possible to refer 
some support needs to some of the funded programmes that already operate in the 
local authority, specifically; Supporting People, Families First and Flying Start. Other 
third sector support may be available. Welsh Government fund the Welsh Refugee 
Council to provide support and one of the first tasks of the Policy Officer will be to 
build up these networks of funded and third sector support to minimise any additional 
impacts on mainstream services. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 A part time fixed term post has been created in the Policy and Partnerships Team to 

provide additional capacity to set up the systems and processes to support 
participation as an Asylum Dispersal Area.  

  
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The views of all consultees have been encompassed within the report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Government Acts.  
 Immigration Act 1999 
 
 
 
Author:        Kathryn Peters. Corporate Policy Manager, peterk@caerphilly.gov.uk  
 
Consultees: Cllr Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
 Cllr Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Housing 
 Cllr James Pritchard, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Gez Kirby, Vice-chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services and Housing 
 Ed Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services 
 Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion and ALN 
 Gareth Jenkins, Assistant Director- Head of Children’s Services 

Page 7



 Jo Williams, Assistant Director - Head of Adult Services 
 Fiona Wilkins, Housing Services Manager 
 Kerry Denman, Housing Solutions Manager 
 Claire Davies, Private Sector Housing Manager 
 Paul Cooke, Senior Policy Officer, Policy and Partnerships 
 Sonya Foley, Policy Officer 
 Kath Thomas, Policy Officer 
 Chris Hunt, Regional Community Cohesion Officer 
        Anne Hubbard, Wales Strategic Migration Partnership 

Page 8



 
 
 

SPECIAL POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
23RD JUNE 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT:  COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT FUND 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To present a proposed approach to the delivery of the council’s newly instigated 

Community Empowerment Fund (CEF). 
 
1.2.  To seek comment and endorsement of the proposed funding criteria and grant 

management arrangements for the Community Empowerment Fund from Policy and 
Resources Scrutiny Committee prior to it being considered by Cabinet.  

 
1.3 To seek views on appropriate support required to enable elected members to 

effectively champion the Community Empowerment Fund across their communities.  
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Team Caerphilly – Better Together transformation strategy endorsed by Cabinet 

in June 2019, highlights the importance of effective community engagement and the 
subsequently endorsed Consultation and Engagement Framework 2020-2025 
commits to promoting and supporting the principles of community empowerment and 
building resilient communities.  

 
2.2 The council is focussed on further strengthening the relationships between it and its 

communities – residents, businesses, voluntary and community groups. Caerphilly 
county borough benefits from a vibrant and engaged voluntary and community sector, 
which offers significant opportunity to maximise community participation. 

 
2.3.  In the council’s recent far-reaching resident survey ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’, 78% 

of respondents to that survey felt it was a positive suggestion to make a community 
budget available to residents, to enable them to do more things for themselves in 
future. 89% of respondents also agreed that offering incentives to communities would 
likely encourage them to take greater pride in their area.  

 
2.4. In the council’s budget setting for 2021/22, members approved a £328,000 annual 

funding allocation for a ‘Community Empowerment Fund’ to support community-led 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



initiatives that complement and support those provided through public services.  
 
2.5. This report sets out the proposed approach to the delivery of the newly instigated 

Community Empowerment Fund, with the draft application form and guidance for the 
fund and draft community engagement guidance for ward members attached at 
appendix one and appendix two respectively.  

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee endorse the proposed approach to the 

delivery of the Community Empowerment Fund, and comment on and endorse the 
funding criteria and grant management arrangements for the fund, prior to it being 
considered by Cabinet.  

 
3.2 That the Committee offer their views on appropriate support required to enable elected 

members to effectively champion the Community Empowerment Fund across their 
communities. 

 
3.3 That the Committee support a review of the Community Empowerment Fund after 12 

months in order to review take up of the fund to date and to identify and mitigate against 
any emerging barriers to the scheme.  

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To ensure the council has a Community Empowerment Fund with robust funding 

criteria and grant management arrangements, in order to enable communities to bid 
for funding to develop and deliver projects aimed at meeting local need.  

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Team Caerphilly – Better Together transformation strategy endorsed by Cabinet 

in June 2019, highlights the importance of effective community engagement and the 
subsequently endorsed Consultation and Engagement Framework 2020-2025 
commits to promoting and supporting the principles of community empowerment and 
building resilient communities. 

 
5.2 Community groups are increasingly playing a strong role in planning and delivering 

services that meet local needs, complementing those provided by public services. 
This community provision has a particular strength in developing innovative and 
flexible activities that are valued by local people and helps to build a real sense of 
community pride and cohesion.  

 
5.3 The council is focussed on further strengthening the relationships between it and its 

communities – residents, businesses, voluntary and community groups. Caerphilly 
county borough benefits from a vibrant and engaged voluntary and community 
sector, which offers significant opportunity to maximise community participation. 

 
5.4 In the council’s recent far-reaching resident survey ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’, 78% 

of respondents to that survey felt it was a positive suggestion to make a community 
budget available to residents, to enable them to do more things for themselves in 
future. 89% of respondents also agreed that offering incentives to communities would 
likely encourage them to take greater pride in their area.  

Page 10



 
5.5 In the council’s budget setting for 2021/22, members approved a £328,000 annual 

funding allocation for a ‘Community Empowerment Fund’ to support community-led 
initiatives that complement and support those provided through public services. This 
allocation amounts to £4,490 per elected member per year. 

 
5.6 The Community Empowerment Fund will enable communities to bid for funding in order 

to develop and deliver community-led initiatives that complement and support those 
provided through public services. Projects will aim to support communities to:  

 

 Build community capacity  

 Better understand and identify their local aspirations and priorities  

 Make good use of existing assets, with the projects having the support of 
local communities  

 Increase active inclusion and develop opportunities for enhanced 
engagement with groups that are more vulnerable and harder to reach  

 Develop local assets, services and projects that respond to the needs of 
the people in their local communities  

 Develop projects that are capable of becoming sustainable community 
projects  

 Complement existing services in an area by providing additional activities  
 
5.7 Grant management 
 

Applications must be made by a non-profit organisation based within Caerphilly 
county borough.  All organisations must have their own bank account in the name of 
the organisation.  
 
For non-constituted community groups that have an interest in bidding into the fund, 
support in advance of submitting the application can be sought from the council’s 
Caerphilly Cares team, to enable them to become a constituted community 
organisation.  
 
In calculating allocations the £328,000 has been divided by 73 (the number of 
elected representatives within Caerphilly county borough), meaning an allocation of 
£4,490 per ward councillor. In wards where there are more than one ward councillor, 
the allocation is multiplied according to the number of ward councillors. For example,  
Penyrheol ward has four elected representatives, therefore the Penyrheol ward 
would benefit from an allocation of £17,960 (£4,490 x 4).   
 
It should be noted that the Community Empowerment Fund allocation of £328,000 for 
Caerphilly county borough during 2021/22 is allocated to wards, and not directly to 
local ward councillors. 
 
The maximum allocation available to an organisation/community group is £4,490 (in 
a single member ward). Approved projects in a single member ward where the total 
cost is less than £4,490, can be awarded a grant of up to 100% of the project costs 
(depending on the number of applications received in a particular application round).  
 
Larger projects in a single member ward costing over £4,490 can receive a grant of 
up to the maximum amount (depending on the number of applications received in a 
particular application round), with the expectation that the remainder of the funding is 
sourced by the organisation/community group from other sources, or their own 
funding.   

Page 11



 
For multi member wards the ward councillors can choose to ‘pool’ their allocation to 
fund larger projects, up to the maximum amount that the ward members have agreed 
to pool (i.e. up to £8,980 in a 2 member ward, up to £13,470 in a 3 member ward).  
Ward members are not required to pool their allocation if they do not wish to. 
 
Organisations/community groups may be offered less than the maximum amount if 
there are multiple applications from organisations or groups in individual wards in a 
single application round.  
 
It is suggested that all applications are for a minimum of £1,000, which can be made 
up of a number of different items.  No group/organisation can apply for a grant in 
consecutive financial years.  
 
50% of the grant amount will be paid when the grant is approved.  The remaining 
50% will be released on receipt of the necessary financial records to show that the 
grant released on project approval has been spent in accordance with the original 
application form submitted.  Invoices/receipts and bank statements will be required 
as evidence.  
  
The Policy and Partnerships Team have considerable experience of managing and 
administering community grants, using the Grants to the Voluntary Sector Panel as a 
post-allocation reporting mechanism after officer delegated decisions against the 
agreed criteria. It is proposed that while elected members will act as ‘sponsors’ for 
bids, the management, administration and ultimate grant allocation of the Community 
Empowerment Fund will follow this established mechanism, with funding allocated 
via officer delegated decisions and information reports to Cabinet every six months.  
 
Full details of eligibility and grant criteria to apply to the Community Empowerment 
Fund is included at Appendix One.  

 
5.8 Application criteria 
 

 The council’s recent resident survey ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’ sought views on 
what the Community Empowerment Fund could be spent on, with seven priority areas 
emerging from the feedback, therefore forming the basis for the application criteria for 
projects: 
 

 Environmental projects, including awareness of biodiversity and increasing 
community activity  

 Projects that support greater community cohesion 

 Projects that aim to tackle isolation and loneliness across the community  

 Digital inclusion projects  

 Projects to encourage greater physical and mental wellbeing  

 Activities for young people/educational activities (non-statutory) 

 Initiatives that promote and encourage community safety 

 Supporting community groups to establish  
 
 Funding would be utilised to support communities to become more sustainable and 

resilient, which also supports the principles of the council’s newly established 
Caerphilly Cares model for service delivery and the council’s Place Shaping and 
Wellbeing Framework.  

 
 Applicant organisations will be required to evidence the need for their project or activity 

Page 12



and the lasting benefits it will provide for the local community. Full application criteria 
for the grant can be found at Appendix One.  

 
5.9 The role of elected members 
 
 As highlighted at section 5.5 of this report, the £328,000 annual allocation to the 

Community Empowerment Fund amounts to the equivalent of £4,490 per elected ward 
councillor per year. In wards where there is more than one elected ward councillor, 
communities can choose to combine their funding allocation, to enable larger scale 
projects to be undertaken.  

 
 Local ward councillors have a key ‘sponsor’ role in the roll out of the fund and in the 

subsequent development of community projects. 
 
 Bids for funding from the Community Empowerment Fund must have support in writing 

from their local elected ward councillor prior to submission, and members must 
consider any potential conflicts of interest before ‘sponsoring’ any application.  

 
 Councillors will also be encouraged to consider: 
 

 Carrying out community engagement activity to raise awareness of the fund 
across their ward area  

 Discuss priorities within their local area with their constituents and seek 
agreement and support for these priority areas in supporting groups to bid 
to the Community Empowerment Fund  

 Work alongside other ward councillors and local organisations where 
possible on joint projects, where co-funding becomes the enabler for 
delivery 

 If projects require resources, or ongoing commitment e.g. maintenance 
from a council service areas, agreement must be received in writing from 
the relevant service area(s) before the project is approved.  

 
Supplementary community engagement guidance for local ward councillors in  
relation to the Community Empowerment Fund can be found at Appendix Two.  
 
In addition, virtual training opportunities for elected members will be available over 
the summer in areas of public engagement including community involvement, 
coproduction and participatory budgeting, which will help inform conversations with 
community members in prioritising ward-level projects.  

 

5.10 Conclusion 

Community groups are increasingly playing a strong role in planning and delivering 
services that meet local needs, complementing those provided by public services. 
This community provision has a particular strength in developing innovative and 
flexible activities that are valued by local people and help to build a real sense of 
community pride and cohesion.  
 
Feedback from residents through the ‘Caerphilly Conversation’ resident survey has 
been instrumental in shaping the remit of the Community Empowerment Fund, 
enabling communities to feel empowered in the design of local services and the 
things that affect them.  
 

Page 13



It is considered that the implementation of the Community Empowerment Fund 
supports the principles of community empowerment, as outlined in the council’s 
Consultation and Engagement Framework 2020-2025.  
 
The Community Empowerment Fund will be reviewed after 12 months in order to 
review take up of the fund to date and to identify and mitigate against any emerging 
barriers to the scheme.  

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 This report has been written with the assumption that ongoing annual funding will be 
available to support the Community Empowerment Fund.   

 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 A full Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed and submitted alongside 

the development of this report.  
 
7.2 The premise of the Community Empowerment Fund is to engage with and empower 

residents to do more for themselves in future. Feedback from ‘The Caerphilly 
Conversation’ resident survey has been instrumental in the development of this fund; 
with 78% of respondents indicating they felt it is a positive idea to make a community 
budget available to residents. Feedback on how the funding should be spend has 
also been key in developing the criteria for submitting a bid.  

 
7.3 As already highlighted, projects would aim to support communities to:  
 

 Build community capacity  

 Better understand and identify their local aspirations and priorities  

 Make good use of existing assets, with the projects having the support of 
local communities  

 Increase active inclusion and develop opportunities for enhanced 
engagement for groups that are more vulnerable and harder to reach  

 Develop local assets, services and projects that respond to the needs of 
the people in their local communities  

 Develop projects that are capable of becoming sustainable community 
projects  

 Complement existing services in an area by providing additional activity  
 

A link to the full Integrated Impact Assessment can be found at: 
https://caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/IIA_CommunityEmpowermentFund_June
2021  

  
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 As per section 6.1, this report was written with the assumption that ongoing annual 

funding will be available to support the Community Empowerment Fund from 2022/23 
onwards.  

 

Page 14

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcaerphilly.gov.uk%2FCaerphillyDocs%2FIIA%2FIIA_CommunityEmpowermentFund_June2021&data=04%7C01%7CLANCAH%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0626606f660b496d53fa08d92ff27952%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637593540722729841%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=U%2F0hdXIpTPbeLP83oXy1%2Bz%2BmzY1KJLaB7Fh8KUC%2B6es%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcaerphilly.gov.uk%2FCaerphillyDocs%2FIIA%2FIIA_CommunityEmpowermentFund_June2021&data=04%7C01%7CLANCAH%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0626606f660b496d53fa08d92ff27952%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637593540722729841%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=U%2F0hdXIpTPbeLP83oXy1%2Bz%2BmzY1KJLaB7Fh8KUC%2B6es%3D&reserved=0


 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The council’s Policy and Partnerships Team have considerable experience of running 

and administering community grant initiatives. While capacity to manage the 
Community Empowerment Fund bids would be a relevant consideration particularly 
given the two-tiered approach to funding allocation (50% on approval, 50% on 
completion), it is thought that implementing a minimum £1,000 amount on 
applications to the fund would be appropriate for administering the fund within current 
resources.  

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 This report has been sent to the consultees listed below and comments received are 

reflected in this report.  
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Equality Act 2010 and Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 

2011. One of the specific duties covers matters of engagement.   
 
 
Author:        Hayley Lancaster, Senior Communications Officer 
        Vicki Doyle, Policy Officer  
 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive  
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services 
 Mark S Williams, Corporate Director Environment and Economy 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services and Housing   
 Cllr Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
 Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member Customer, Performance & Property 
 Cllr James Pritchard, Chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Gez Kirby, Vice Chair Police and Resources Scrutiny Committee   
 Cllr Colin Mann, Leader Plaid Cymru Group  
 Cllr Kevin Etheridge, Leader Independent Group  
 Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer  
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services  
 Stephen Harris, Head of Corporate Finance / Section 151 Officer  
 Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager   
 Tina McMahon, Caerphilly Cares Manager 
 Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities, Welsh Language and 

Consultation  
  
Background papers: 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council Consultation and Engagement Framework 2020-2025 - 
15694ConsultationandEngagementFramework.pdf (caerphilly.gov.uk)  
 
Findings from ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’ resident survey 2020/21 - Caerphilly - Join the 
Caerphilly Conversation  

 

Page 15

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/tc-eng/assets/docs/15694ConsultationandEngagementFramework.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyConversation
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyConversation


Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 Draft Application Criteria – Community Empowerment Fund 
Appendix 2 Draft Engagement Guidance for Members – Community Empowerment Fund 
Appendix 3 Draft Application Form – Community Empowerment Fund 
 
 

Page 16



 

1 

 

 
 

 
 

Community Empowerment Fund - Application Criteria 
 

 
Purpose of the Grant 

 
Caerphilly County Borough Council is committed to supporting communities to become 
strong and resilient, and recognise that one of our county borough’s greatest assets is the 
thriving network of local community groups and organisations across the area, particularly 
so in light of the Covid pandemic.  
 
This grant scheme has been created to enable communities to develop and deliver 
projects aimed at meeting the needs of their residents.  Key to this will be the involvement 
of local elected members as one of the key contact points in local communities, who will 
work with and support local community groups to develop project ideas that meet identified 
need on a ward basis. 
 
The Council’s budget setting for 2021/22 includes a £328,000 annual funding allocation for 
a ‘Community Empowerment Fund’ to support community-led initiatives that complement 
and support those provided through public services.   
 
In calculating allocations the £328,000 has been divided by 73 (the number of elected 
representatives within Caerphilly county borough), meaning an allocation of £4,490 per 
ward councillor. In wards where there are more than one ward councillor, the allocation is 
multiplied according to the number of ward councillors. For example, Penyrheol ward has 
four elected representatives, therefore the Penyrheol ward would benefit from an allocation 
of £17,960 (£4,490 x 4).  
 
It should be noted that the Community Empowerment Fund allocation of £328,000 for 
Caerphilly county borough during 2021/22 is allocated to wards, and not directly to local 
ward councillors.  
 
 
Projects will aim to support communities to:  
 

 Build community capacity  

 Better understand and identify their local aspirations and priorities  

 Make good use of existing assets, with the projects having the support of local 
communities  

 Increase active inclusion and develop opportunities for enhanced engagement for 
groups that are more vulnerable and harder to reach  

 Develop local assets, services and projects that respond to the needs of the people 
in their local communities  

 Develop projects that are capable of becoming sustainable community projects  

 Complement existing services in an area by providing additional activity  
 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 17



 

2 

 

 
Who can apply? 
 
Projects must be managed by a non-profit organisation based within Caerphilly county 
borough, of one of the following types: 

 
(i) Unincorporated voluntary/community organisation or club with an adopted 

constitution or rules (an agreement between a group of people who come together 
for a reason other than to make a profit e.g. voluntary group or sports club) 

(ii) Charities or Charitable Incorporated Organisations (CIOs) registered with the 
Charities Commission (these can be new or existing charities) 

(iii) Community organisations who are Companies Limited by Guarantee (CLG) with no 
share capital and are registered with Companies House (company is owned by 
guarantors and any profits are re-invested to help promote the non-profit objectives 
of the company) 

(iv) Community Interest Companies (CICs) which are not established or conducted for 
private gain: any surplus or assets are used exclusively for the benefit of the 
community (designed for social enterprises that want to use their profits and assets 
for the public good) 

 
Please note: All organisations must have their own bank account in the name of the 
organisation.  If the organisation does not currently have a bank account, this must 
be addressed before a formal grant offer can be made. 
 
The following types of organisations will not be funded: 
 
(i) Any commercial/trading or profit-making organisations where the profits are shared 

amongst the Directors, shareholders or members 
(ii) This list is not exhaustive 
 
 
What can be funded? 
 
The council’s recent resident survey ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’ sought views on what 
the Community Empowerment Fund could be spent on, with seven priority areas emerging 
from the feedback, therefore forming the basis for the application criteria for projects: 
 

 Environmental projects, including awareness of biodiversity and increasing 
community activity 

 Projects that support greater community cohesion 

 Projects that aim to tackle isolation and loneliness across the community  

 Digital inclusion projects  

 Projects to encourage greater physical and mental wellbeing  

 Activities for young people/educational activities (non-statutory) 

 Initiatives that promote and encourage community safety 

 Supporting community groups to establish  
 
Applicant organisations will be required to evidence the need for their project or activity 
and the lasting benefits it will provide for the local community. 
 
  

Page 18



 

3 

 

What cannot be funded? 
 
(i) Usual running costs of any organisation e.g. rent, utilities, insurance etc.  The only 

exception to this is where organisation’s have been formed in the six months prior 
to an application being made, where they can apply for one-off start-up costs. 

(ii) Subsequent grants for the same project or activity (by this we mean that any new 
application must be for activity substantially different to previous applications) 

(iii) Retrospective costs for any project i.e. costs for work already undertaken or 
equipment and/or materials that have been purchased or ordered prior to a formal 
grant offer being made and the Terms & Conditions of the grant being signed and 
submitted.  If using a tender process, tenders cannot be awarded prior to a grant 
approval being made 

(iv) This list is indicative only and is not exhaustive 
 
 
When can an application be submitted? 
 
The closing date for the first round of the grant scheme will be 31st October 2021.  
Subsequent rounds will be dependent upon there being funding remain in the relevant 
ward pot, i.e. if all the funding in a particular ward is allocated in the first round there will be 
no further grant rounds for that ward in that financial year, however, there may be further 
application rounds in other wards.   Applicants will be informed of the outcome of their 
application approximately 6-8 weeks after submission, depending on the total number of 
grants submitted in each round overall. 
 
Applicants cannot apply for further grants in successive years i.e. if a successful 
application is made in the 2021/22 financial year (i.e. between 1st April 2021 and 31st 
March 2022), the applicant cannot make a further application until 1st April 2023 at the 
earliest.   
 
How much can be applied for? 
 
The maximum allocation available to an organisation/community group is £4,490 (in a 
single member ward). Approved projects in a single member ward where the total cost is 
less than £4,490, can be awarded a grant of up to 100% of the project costs (depending 
on the number of applications received in a particular application round).  
 
Larger projects in a single member ward costing over £4,490 can receive a grant of up to 
the maximum amount (depending on the number of applications received in a particular 
application round), with the expectation that the remainder of the funding is sourced by the 
organisation/community group from other sources, or their own funding.   
 
For multi member wards the ward councillors can choose to ‘pool’ their allocation to fund 
larger projects, up to the maximum amount that the ward members have agreed to pool 
(i.e. up to £8,980 in a 2 member ward, up to £13,470 in a 3 member ward).  Ward 
members are not required to pool their allocation if they do not wish to. 
 
Organisations/community groups may be offered less than the maximum amount if there 
are multiple applications from organisations or groups in individual wards in a single 
application round.  
 
It is suggested that all applications are for a minimum of £1,000, which can be made up of 
a number of different items.   

Page 19



 

4 

 

 
Estimates/quotes 
 
Applicants must submit comparable estimates/quotes to support their application.  A 
minimum two written estimates/quotes are required for every item listed in the ‘Financial 
Details’ section of the application form. 
 
Estimates/quotes must be itemised, detailed and comparable (in terms of measurements, 
rates, quantities, specification etc.).  They must also detail VAT where applicable. 
 
Any grant offered is made on the basis of the cheapest quote provided.  Applicants can 
choose a more expensive supplier or contractor to complete the work or provide 
goods/services, but this will be at the applicants’ cost. 
 
Payments 
 
50% of the grant amount will be paid when the grant is approved.  The remaining 50% will 
be released on receipt of the necessary financial records to show that the grant released 
on project approval has been spent in accordance with the original application form 
submitted.  Invoices/receipts and bank statements will be required as evidence. 
 
Project timescales 
 
All approved projects must be completed within 18 months of the date of the formal offer 
letter.  The funding for any projects not completed within this timescale will be 
automatically withdrawn.   
 
After six months of the first tranche of funding being released, if an organisation has not 
made progress in undertaking the project (or is unable to offer an adequate explanation for 
not doing so), no further grant funding will be released and we will seek to recover the 
funding already paid. 
 
Who to contact? 
 
For more information or if you have any queries, please contact XXXXX, Policy and 
Partnerships Team, Caerphilly County Borough Council, Penallta House, Tredomen Park, 
Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed, CF82 7PG.  Tel: 01443 86XXX or e-mail XXXXXX 

Page 20



Appendix 2 
 

Community Empowerment Fund – Community engagement guidance for  
local councillors 

 
Overview:   
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council is committed to supporting communities to 
become strong and resilient, and recognise that one of our county borough’s 
greatest assets is the thriving network of local community groups and organisations 
across the area, particularly so in light of the Covid pandemic.  
 
This grant scheme has been created to enable communities to develop and deliver 
projects aimed at meeting the needs of their residents.  Key to this will be the 
involvement of local elected members as one of the key contact points in local 
communities, who will work with and support local community groups to develop 
project ideas that meet identified need on a ward basis. 
 
This guidance document has been produced using insight from the council’s 
Consultation and Engagement Framework 2020-2025 and the LGA’s ‘Councillor 
workbook: neighbourhood and community engagement’ as a handy tool for local 
councillors in their key role in supporting the facilitation of the Community 
Empowerment Fund.  
 
Consultation and Engagement Framework 2020-2025 
 
This key strategic document was endorsed by the council in February 2020 and 
states that:  
 
“Through Team Caerphilly - Better Together, the council is committed to ensuring 
high quality, citizen focussed services for the communities that comprise our county 
borough. In future-proofing public services, we recognise the need to ensure 
effective engagement is central to our decision making - involving residents in the 
design of local services and the things that affect them.  
 
In addition, we are focussing on further strengthening the relationship between the 
council and the community - residents, businesses, voluntary and community 
groups. Caerphilly county borough has a vibrant and engaged voluntary and 
community sector, which offers significant opportunity to maximise community 
participation”. 
 
The principles of engagement outlined in the document are that as a council:  
 

 We will listen and understand  

 Caerphilly county borough people will help inform and shape the decisions we 
make - and in turn we will keep people informed 

 We will be inclusive and act with purpose  

 We will make the most of what already exists in our communities  

 Empower local residents to have greater influence over the issues that affect 
them  

Page 21



 Increase and strengthen the role of communities in how we live, work and visit 
Caerphilly county borough  

 Help us to understand the needs of our communities which in turn, helps to 
ensure that the services we deliver meet those needs and that available 
resources are used effectively and in line with agreed priorities 

 Ensure people are involved in the democratic process and enable 
communities to have greater input on issues that affect them  

 Support communities to take action by helping them identify needs and 
support them in developing community-led solutions 

 
How did the Community Empowerment Fund come about?  
 
In the council’s far-reaching resident survey ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’, carried 
out during December 2020 and January 2021, respondents told us that 78% of felt it 
was a positive suggestion to make a community budget available to residents, to 
enable them to do more things for themselves in future. 89% of respondents also 
agreed that offering incentives to communities would likely encourage them to take 
greater pride in their area.  
 
In direct response to this feedback, in the council’s budget setting for 2021/22, 
members approved a £328,000 annual funding allocation for a ‘Community 
Empowerment Fund’ to support community-led initiatives that complement and 
support those provided through public services. This allocation amounts to £4,490 
per elected member per year. 
 
What will the fund support communities to do?  
 

The Community Empowerment Fund will enable communities to bid for funding in 
order to develop and delivery community-led initiatives that complement and 
support those provided through public services. Projects will aim to support 
communities to:  

 

 Build community capacity  

 Better understand and identify their local aspirations and priorities  

 Make good use of existing assets, with the projects having the 
support of local communities  

 Increase active inclusion and develop opportunities for enhanced 
engagement for groups that are more vulnerable and harder to reach  

 Develop local assets, services and projects that respond to the needs 
of the people in their local communities  

 Develop projects that are capable of becoming sustainable 
community projects  

 Complement existing services in an area by providing additional 
activity  

 

In calculating allocations, the £328,000 has been divided by 73 (the number of 
elected representatives within Caerphilly county borough), meaning an allocation of 
the equivalent of £4,490 per elected member. In wards where there are more than 
one elected member, the allocation is multiplied according to the number of ward 
councillors. For example – Penyrheol ward has four elected representatives; 

Page 22



therefore the Penyrheol ward would benefit from an allocation of £17,960 (£4,490 x 
4).  
 
What is my role in all this?  
 
As elected representative, you have a significant role to play in the successful 
delivery of the Community Empowerment Fund across your communities.  
 
Community groups will require your ‘sponsorship’ (support) for their project idea prior 
to their application for funding being submitted, with the project(s) in question 
needing to meet the criteria outlined above.  
 
Bids for funding from the Community Empowerment Fund must have support in 
writing from you, their local elected ward councillor prior to submission, and 
members must consider any potential conflicts of interest before ‘sponsoring’ an 
organisation’s project. 
 
Having listened to feedback from residents on how the funding should be spent 
across communities, projects should also address one or more of the following:  
 

 Environmental projects, including awareness of biodiversity and community 
projects  

 Projects that support greater community cohesion 

 Projects that aim to tackle isolation and loneliness across the community  

 Digital inclusion projects  

 Projects to encourage greater physical and mental wellbeing  

 Activities for young people/educational activities  

 Initiatives that promote and encourage community safety 

 Supporting community groups to establish  
 
Key to this will be the involvement of you as local elected members, as one of 
the key contact points in local communities, to work with and support local 
community groups to develop project ideas that meet identified need on a 
ward basis. 
 
Elected members and community engagement: 
 
The LGA’s ‘Councillor workbook: neighbourhood and community engagement’ states 
that:  

 
‘Ward councillors, as democratically-elected leaders representing their communities 
have a unique role to play in enabling the local engagement which will drive strong, 
connected communities – what we refer to as ‘community engagement’. 
 
‘Ward members are in the front line of neighbourhood and community engagement. 
As a community leader, you are best placed to understand the particular challenges 
faced by your constituents. And working with a wide range of individuals and 
organisations in the area, you can help them to decide how best to respond.  
 

Page 23



‘It is only at a local level that problems such as access crime, environmental 
concerns and anti-social behaviour can be understood and addressed. Few other 
community leaders have the mandate to coordinate different interests, reconcile 
diverse views and encourage open debate and dialogue in the way that you can. 
 
The particular strengths and knowledge that you bring to this engagement process 
are:  
 

 An understanding of your ward – the demographics, the key issues facing 
local people and the way that services are being delivered  

 The representation of local voices – you are a channel of communication 
between the communities you serve and the council, representing the views 
of others and speaking up for the ‘hard to reach’ or ‘seldom heard’  

 Communicating and influencing skills – you can help to ensure that the views 
of local people are taken into account when decisions are made by the council 
or outside bodies  

 
How can I support the roll out of the Community Empowerment Fund? 
 
The Local Government Association’s useful ‘Councillor workbook: neighbourhood 
and community engagement’ gives lots of useful advice on how you as local elected 
representatives can encourage greater engagement with your communities.  
 
The document can be found here: 11 26_LGA Cllr Workbook_Neighbour hood 
engagement workbook_December 2016.pdf (local.gov.uk)  
 

In addition, councillors will be invited to attend a series of online training 
opportunities on ‘Community Involvement’, ‘Community Empowerment’ and 
‘Coproduction’ throughout the summer months. Please contact Hayley Lancaster at 
lancah@caerphilly.gov.uk for further details.  

Page 24

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11%2026_LGA%20Cllr%20Workbook_Neighbour%20hood%20engagement%20workbook_December%202016.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11%2026_LGA%20Cllr%20Workbook_Neighbour%20hood%20engagement%20workbook_December%202016.pdf
mailto:lancah@caerphilly.gov.uk


APPENDIX 3 
 

1 
 

 
 
 

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Penallta House, Tredomen Park, Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed CF82 7PG 

Tel: 01443 86XXXX 
 

COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT FUND – APPLICATION FORM 
 

The completed application form and supporting documents should be returned to XXXXX, 
Policy and Partnerships Team at the above address. 

 
Any additional information which cannot be supplied in the space provided may be given on 
a separate sheet which should be signed and dated by the applicant. 
 

 

Name of organisation:  

 

Does the organisation have a constitution? 

☐  Yes (please provide a copy)  ☐  No 

 
Please provide the organisations’ bank account details  
(these must be supplied and must be in the name of the organisation.  All payments will be 
made via BACS transfer direct to this bank account) 
 

Name of Bank:  Branch address:  

    

Sort code:  Account number:  

 
 
Name and address of secretary or main contact: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Email address:  Telephone no:  

 
 

Page 25



APPENDIX 3 
 

2 
 

 

Is the organisation a charity/voluntary organisation/other? 

☐ Charity (please state registration number)  

  

☐  Voluntary organisation  

  

☐  Other (please state)  

 

Please give a brief description of the general aims of the organisation? 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Please state which electoral ward the project is located in: 

 

 
 
Please state the name of ward councillor(s) that is/are supporting this project, 
together with a brief summary of the support provided to date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Does the ward councillor that is/are supporting this project have a personal or 
prejudicial interest in the organisation or its activities? 

☐  Yes (please provide details below) ☐  No 

 

(Note: The ward councillor(s) must also complete a ‘Declaration of Interests’ form and 
submit it alongside this application) 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



APPENDIX 3 
 

3 
 

 
 

 
 
 
PLEASE READ THE GUIDELINES AT THE END OF THE FORM BEFORE COMPLETING 
THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS 

 
THE PROJECT 

  
Please provide a general description of the project that you are seeking funding for: 
(continue on additional sheets if necessary, which should be signed and dated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

What specifically do you require funding for?  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

How have you identified the need for the project?  How will the project help to meet 
the identified needs?   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

What benefits/effects will this project have for the local community? 

 
 
 
 

Page 27



APPENDIX 3 
 

4 
 

 
 

 
 

If there are ongoing maintenance costs associated with the project how will these be 
met and who will be responsible? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
BUILDING/PHYSICAL WORKS 

 
If the project involves the undertaking of building/physical works, please complete 
the following.  If no building/physical works are involved please go to the ‘FINANCIAL 
DETAILS’ section. 
 
Is Planning Permission required for the planned work? 

☐  Yes (please provide details below) ☐     No 

 

If no, why do you believe this to be the case?  

 
Has Planning Permission been obtained if needed? 

☐  Yes (please provide details below) ☐      No 

 

If yes, please quote Ref No and date awarded:  

 
Have Building Regulations been obtained if needed? 

☐  Yes (please provide details below) ☐      No 

 

If yes, please quote Ref No and date awarded:  

 
 
Is the building owned by the organisation applying? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 
If the building is not owned by the organisation, who is is owned by? 
 

Page 28



APPENDIX 3 
 

5 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 29



APPENDIX 3 
 

6 
 

If the building is not owned by the organisation, is it rented or leased? 

☐  Rented (please give details of the rental 

       agreement period) 

 

  

☐  Leased (please detail the expiry date of the  

       current lease or if it renews annually) 

 

 
FINANCIAL DETAILS 

 
Please provide a summary of the financial details relating to your project.  Please 
note that the Community Empowerment Fund cannot support retrospective costs.  
(Retrospective costs are costs for work already undertaken or equipment that has been 
purchased prior to a formal grant offer.  These are ineligible from this fund and should not be 
included in any application you may wish to make). 

 
You must provide a breakdown of the costs for the whole of the project for which you are 
applying (not just the grant amount). 

 

Breakdown*  Cost (£)** 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Total cost of project  

 
* Applicants must ensure the detail provided in the previous table corresponds with the 
original quotes/estimates submitted with this application.  A minimum of two written 
quotes must be provided for each item in the above list. 
** Applicants must ensure that all costs listed are inclusive of VAT where appropriate 

 
Notes: 
(i) The minimum grant available is £1,000 per appication.  This can be made up of a 

number of different items in order to reach this minimum limit.  Applications for less 
than £1,000 will not be considered 

(ii) The maximum grant available is £4,490 per ward councillor (in single member wards), 
unless ithe relevant ward councllors have agreed to combine their funding pots (this 
will need to be discussed with the relevant ward councillors) 

(iii) Organisations may be offered less than the maximum amount of £4,490 (or multiples 
thereof in multi member wards) if there are multiple applications in individual wards in a 
single application round.  Should this be the case, ward councillors in the relevant ward 
will be involved in discussions around prioritising which projects should be supported. 

Page 30



APPENDIX 3 
 

7 
 

(iv) Approved projects costing up to £4,490 (in single member wards, or multiples thereof 
in multi member wards) can be fully grant aided if there are no other applications in the 
same ward in the same round 

(v) Approved projects costing more than £4,490 (in single member wards, or multiples 
thereof in multi member wards) will need to secure match funding 

 
 

Amount of grant sought?  

 
 

How much is being sought from or provided by other sources? (please provide details 
– this can include funding provided by other organisations or funders, or match funding from 
the applicant organisation) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DECLARATION 

 
I/we consent to the information provided on this form, and any information subsequently 
provided by me/us either verbally or in writing, to be processed for the purposes of the 
assessment of my/our request for assistance by Caerphilly County Borough Council.  I/we 
understand that the information may be disclosed to other department of the Council, and to 
the Council's external auditors. 

 
I can confirm that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all answers on this application 
form are true and accurate.  I also confirm that I am authorised to sign this agreement and to 
act on behalf of the organisation making this application.  
 

 

Print name:  Signature:  

 

Capacity in which signed:  Date:  

 
 
We are collecting your personal data (name, address, telephone number, e-mail address 
and bank account details) in order to process this application for grant funding.  Should your 
application be successful, this information will also be used for the purposes of making 
payments in relation to your grant award. 
 

Page 31



APPENDIX 3 
 

8 
 

If your grant application is successful, your information will be retained for a period of 6 
years plus the current year and will also be accessed by the Authority’s Corporate Finance 
and Audit Teams for the purposes of the administration of the financial affairs of the 
Authority and audit purposes.  If your grant application is unsuccessful, your information will 
be retained for a period of 2 years. 
 
You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the right of access to 
information we hold about you and the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way 
that we have handled your request or your information.  If you wish to make a request to see 
your data, or to object to the manner in which it is processed, please contact the Data 
Protection Officer at the Information Unit on 01443 864322. 

 
Under the Head of Corporate Finance’s role as Section 151 Officer, with responsibility for 
the administration of the financial affairs of the Authority, all applications may be subject 
to review.  As the authorised representative of the Section 151 Officer, the Council’s 
Internal Audit Services must be granted access to all financial documents or records held 
by the applicant in relation to the approved grant funding. Any review may, if considered 
appropriate, include site visits to premises. 

 
If it is found that the grant has been used for purposes other than those as stated within 
the application, or that any of the terms and conditions of the grant have not been 
complied with, the Authority, at its discretion, may withhold or recover part or all of the 
funding.   
 

Please note: 
 

All organisations receiving financial assistance must: 

 Have principles of operation which accord with legislation on employment, health and 
safety, racial and sexual discrimination, disability discrimination and language for 
employees and volunteers. 

 Demonstrate an understanding of and commitment to equal opportunities concerning 
access, language, culture, gender and ethnic issues. 

 
The following principles will be followed when dealing with applications to the 
Community Empowerment Fund: 

 
(i) 50% of the grant amount will be paid when the grant is approved.  The remaining 

50% will be released on receipt of the necessary financial records to show that the 
grant released on project approval has been spent in accordance with the original 
application form submitted.  Invoices/receipts and bank statements will be required 
as evidence. No organisation is able to apply in consecutive financial years. 
 

(ii) Retrospective costs i.e. costs for work already undertaken or equipment that has 
been purchased prior to a formal grant offer, are ineligible from this fund and 
should not be included in any application you wish to make. 

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili - Cynigion ar gyfer Gwasgariad Lloches ac Adleoli Affganiaid.
	4 Cronfa Ymrymuso'r Gymuned.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3


